
   
 
 
Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board 
April 23, 2014 Meeting Transmittal Cover Sheet 
 

April 21, 2014 
 
Board Members: 
The packet for the April 23rd Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board meeting contains 
the following materials:   
 

1. April 23rd Meeting Agenda 

2. Meeting Minutes, March 27th EDRST meeting – DRAFT 

3. Meeting Minutes, April 9th EDRST Public Hearing – DRAFT 

4. University City Department of Community Development FY15 Application – Administration 

5. University City Loop Special Business District Application FY15 – Tree Grates 

6. University City Chamber of Commerce – Follow-up information from March 27th Meeting 

7. Public Works – Follow-up information from March 27th Meeting 

8. Loop Media Hub – Follow-up information from March 27th Meeting 

9. COCA – Letter of support for Loop Media Hub Application 

10. University City Chamber of Commerce – Letter of support for The Collaborative Application 

11. Steve Stone – Email in support of the Loop Special Business District Application to expand parking lot #4 

12. M.D. Rothschild II - Email in support of the Loop Special Business District Application to expand parking lot 
#4 

13. Stanley L. Hoffman - Email in support of the Loop Special Business District Application to expand parking lot 
#4 

                     14. Derek Deaver - Email in support of the Loop Special Business District Application to expand parking lot #4

                                   15. Jessica Bueler - Email in support of the Loop Special Business District Application to expand parking lot #4

                                                 16.  Staff Analysis and Recommendation for FY 15 Funding       

                  
 

                                                    Please contact Andrea Riganti, Director of Community Development at (314) 505-8516 with 
                                                    questions.   

                                                    Thank you.   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board 
6801 Delmar Boulevard University City, Missouri  63130 314-505-8500 Fax:  314-862-3168 
 

AGENDA 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RETAIL SALES TAX BOARD  

Heman Park Community Center  
975 Pennsylvania Ave, University City, MO 63130 

4:00 p.m.; Wednesday, April 23, 2014 
 
 
 

1. Roll Call 
 

2. Approval of Minutes 
a. 3/27/14 meeting minutes (discussion and vote) 
 

3. Old Business 
a. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget* (discussion and vote) 
 

4. New Business  
 

5. Other Business 
a. Public Comments (Limited to 3 minutes for individual’s comments, 5 minutes for 

representatives of groups or organizations). 
 

6. Reports  
 a.  City Council Liaison 

b.  Staff Report 
 

 
7. Roll Call Vote to Go Into Closed Session.  RSMo 610.021(2) leasing, purchase or 

sale of real estate. 
 

8. Adjournment 
 
 
* NOTE: Hardcopies of the Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Fiscal Year 2015 
APPLICATIONS are available for the public to review at the University City Public Library, 
Centennial Commons, and City Hall, 4th Floor. Electronic copies are available on the City’s 
website, www.ucitymo.org. For the direct link, please email Jodie Lloyd at jlloyd@ucitymo.org. 
 

http://www.ucitymo.org/
mailto:jlloyd@ucitymo.org


1 

 

 

Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board  
Meeting Minutes 
March 27, 2014 

6:00 p.m. 
 
The Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board (EDRSTB) held a meeting at the Heman Park 
Community Center located at 975 Pennsylvania, University City, Missouri on March 27, 2014. The 
meeting commenced at 6:03 p.m. 

 
Voting Members Present  
Barbara Sydnor (Chairperson)  
Mark Winer  
Tom Peters 
 
Voting Members Absent 
Robert Kuhlman, Jr. (Excused) 
Jackie Wellington (Excused) 
 
Non-Voting Ex-Officio Members Present 
Shelley Welsch, Mayor 
Joe Edwards 
 
Staff Present 
Andrea Riganti, Director of Community Development 
Raymond Lai, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development 
Jodie Lloyd, Manager of Economic Development 

 
Approval of Minutes 
The minutes of the January 15, 2014 meeting were reviewed, discussed, and approved by a vote of 3-0.   

 
Old Business 

 No old business 
 
New Business 

a) Election of Officers 
Ms. Syndor was nominated and approved to continue as Board Chair. Mr. Winer was nominated and 
approved to continue as Board Vice-Chair. Ms. Wellington was nominated and approved to continue 
as Board Secretary.  
 

b) Chamber Request to become an Ex-Officio EDRSTB Member 
Staff provided an overview of Chamber letter from January 14, 2014, a request to become an Ex-
Officio member. In the past, the Olive Business Association was listed as an Ex-Officio member. That 
organization no longer exists so now the Chamber would like to become a member.  
 
Anne Carr, Chamber Director, explained that the Chamber has a new Olive Blvd. Subcommittee. The 
members of the Subcommittee are Chamber members. Board wants to make certain that the 
Chamber representative is a “voice” for Olive Blvd., not just Chamber members. Ms. Carr indicated 
that Matt Beaver, Chamber President, would like to become the Chamber’s representative as the Ex-
Officio member. Mr. Peters wanted to make sure all the Olive Blvd businesses get the information 
about the Board. Mr. Peters wanted to see the position for a year or six months temporarily. 
 
The Board voted and accepted the recommendation that the Chamber of Commerce have a one-year 



2 

 

 

ex-officio non-voting member on the Economic Development Retails Sales Tax Board. The person 
must be a member of the Olive Boulevard Subcommittee. The recommendation will be presented to 
City Council for discussion. 
 

c) EDRST FY 15 requests for funds – Representative from the below organization gave presentations on 
request for EDRST FY 2015 funds (see attached spreadsheet on funding requests) . Each 
organization was given 15 minutes. 

i. U City in Bloom 
Jesse Gilbertson, Director of Horticulture for U City in Bloom – Discussed funding requests for 
six projects. Priority project would be the Olive Gardens, maintenance of 9 gardens.  
Mr. Peters asked how much funding U City in Bloom received out of the City general fund to 
maintain City gardens. Mr. Gilbertson indicated $80,000. 

 
ii. Chamber of Commerce 

Anne Carr, Executive Director, Chamber of Commerce – Requesting $52,927. The funds 
would be used to provide data for the City’s real estate website, to support the Taste of U City, 
to build local leadership through the Olive Blvd Subcommittee, to support the Small Business 
Workshops, and to provide training for Lynda.com through the Chamber site.  
 
Mr. Winer asked about the status of the Olive Subcommittee. Ms. Carr indicated that at first the 
committee will focus on two of the four districts, the International District and the Interchange  
District. The Chamber will work with the City to make business owners aware of the Façade 
Program and to bring in new businesses.  The Chamber is providing an organization for Olive 
businesses to have a voice. The Subcommittee could be expanded to include all four districts 
of Olive Blvd. 
 
Mr. Peters liked that the Chamber is providing training programs. He had questions about the 
use of the funds and success since the EDRST Board just allocated funds to the Chamber in 
January. He would like information about how many businesses have been contacted or 
information related to how the Chamber is using the current funds from January-June.  
 
Ms. Sydnor asked how many Chamber members on Olive Blvd.  Ms. Carr did not have specific 
number. 

 
iii. Loop Media Hub 

David Sandel, Program Manager, Loop Media Hub – Requesting $44,280 for design and 
engineering of a gigabit wireless and supporting fiber optic network.  The Loop Media Hub’s 
vision was to become the site of the first gigabit city in the St. Louis area. Mr. Sandel 
introduced Mike Orlowski, the attorney for the Loop Media Hub Board. He would develop a 
license agreement and to finalize an agreement with an ISP. Mr. Sandel explained that the 
project could be extended to Olive Blvd. A deliverable to the EDRST Board would include a 
yearly report on economic development impact of the project. 
 
Mr. Peters asked about Washington University’s funding of the project. Mr. Sandel indicated 
they have four universities coming on-board and interested in the capacity of the fiber. Multiple 
departments of Washington University would be interested. Mr. Peters wanted to see more 
information about Washington University’s involvement and commitment to the project. Mr. 
Orlowski indicated that end users will have to pay a lateral fee to connect to the fiber, including 
Washington University. Mr. Sandel indicated that students will come into the Loop, which will 
increase the economic development of the area. 
 
Ms. Syndor asked if businesses will still have to pay for the service? Mr. Sandel stated yes but 



3 

 

 

pricing was still to be determined. Expansion of fiber by adding lateral was discussed. 
 

iv. Loop Special Business District 
Joe Edwards, President of the Loop Special Business District discussed the requests for funds 
(see attached spreadsheet).  

 
v. The Collaborative 

Eric Friedman, University City resident and a founder of The Collaborative; Michael Mindlin, 
Principal at Perkowitz + Ruth; and Matt Bauer with Development Strategies  – Discussed the 
requested $85,000 in funds. The Collaborative is a new business model to foster economic 
development. The project would study the feasibility of adding fiber along Olive Blvd. The 
project would also look at the highest and best use for the City-owned property on Olive Blvd 
as well as for the entire corridor. Through this project, the Collaborative wants to leverage 
control of fiber and real estate and bring these things together for a broader regional vision. 
 
Mr. Winer asked how the project differs from the Loop Media Hub. Mr. Friedman indicated that 
the project was in alignment, but in a different way. The Collaborative brings expertise 
including real estate.  
 
Mr. Peters asked about the funding to clarify that The Collaborative project is $125,000 and 
request for funds is $85,000. Mr. Friedman concurred. Mr. Peters also enquired if The 
Collaborative would look at 2-3 sites for the highest and best use, not just the City’s property. 
Mr. Friedman concurred and Mr. Mindlin discussed that The Collaborative would also bring 
additional resources to the project including funding opportunities. 

 
vi. Department of Public Works and Parks 

Sinan Alpaslan, Deputy Director of Public Works and Parks and City Engineer – Discussed the 
funding requests for 3 projects (see attached spreadsheet). Regarding sidewalk improvement 
projects, Mr. Alpaslan explained that the existing sidewalk segments need replaced. The 
sidewalks are broken and not up to ADA standards. Although the right of way is owned by the 
Missouri Department of Transportation, the City has been making sidewalk improvements to 
Olive Blvd and has been maintaining the sidewalks. The sidewalk projects would improve the 
curb appeal of Olive Blvd. 
 
Mr. Winer asked about the existing trees on Olive Blvd. Mr. Alpaslan indicated that in one 
section the sidewalk can be improved without impacting the trees. However, in one section, the 
newer, younger trees can be replanted. 
 
Mr. Peters asked about a plan for Olive Blvd. Mr. Alpaslan indicated that the City has the Olive 
Blvd. Design Guidelines and the City uses the document to design new projects. Mr. Peters 
also inquired about funding for the sidewalks next to Heman Park. Mr. Alpaslan stated that 
those sidewalks were funded through the federal government transportation funds as an 80/20 
match and that the City can continue to apply for federal grants for sidewalks but that money is 
not guaranteed. Mr. Peters requested a map of Olive Blvd and where the improvements have 
been completed and where they are planned. 

 
vii. Department of Community Development 

Andrea Riganti, Director, Department of Community Development – Requesting $100,000 in 
funding for administration to continue to provide staffing for economic development activities. 
City works on retention, expansion, and attraction efforts throughout the year, partnering with 
the existing businesses and looking for opportunities for new businesses to come to the City. 
The vision for Olive Blvd. is expressed in the Comprehensive Plan and an update will occur 



4 

 

 

later this year and in 2015. City staff will continue to provide staff reports and quarterly updates 
to the Board. The second request is to continue marketing efforts and materials in the amount 
of $10,000. And the final request is to fund street banner signs in the International District on 
Olive Boulevard in the amount of $20,000. This would help enhance the physical environment 
of the street, coupled with the façade improvement program. The signs would be substantial 
including material that would not deteriorate.  
 
Mr. Peters would like additional information about what the EDRST Board funded last year. He 
also would like to have a plan for the EDRST and to create a goal for the EDRST in line with 
the City planning efforts. Ms. Riganti suggested that the EDRST members to involve in the 
update of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
 
Other Business 
Public Comments – 
Jane Zinni – lives in the “Musick neighborhood” 
Ms. Zinni stated that gigabit fiber on Olive Blvd would be a good idea but not sure how this project relates to 
the Delmar project.  The City should figure out the connection before giving money to the organizations.  Ms. 
Zinni wanted to see the sidewalks developed in a coherent fashion.  
 
Greg Pace, 7171 Westmoreland 
Mr. Pace stated that the Economic Development fund should be spent in University City. He indicated that the 
Loop Ice Carnival was being funded mostly by University City, but more than 1/6th of the activity occurred in 
the City of St. Louis. Improvement costs for the new Fire House on Westgate Ave. were more than expected. 
 
Ellen Bern, 7001 Washington 
Ms. Bern stated that the Board should consider balance in the activities funded such as the promotional 
events.  The City should have a “strategic plan” for the next 5 years. The City should have comprehensive 
review of things like parking, signage, hanging baskets, and public art with community input.  Their long-term 
benefits should be considered.  The City should get “buy in” on projects from the business community on Olive 
Blvd. The Chamber can percolate that relationship. Ms. Bern’s stated that high-speed internet will be a game-
changer for the City. Ms. Bern’s stated that the Chamber president is appropriate to be the Ex-Officio member 
on the Board. 
 
 
Reports 
a. Council Liaison Report –Mayor Welsch stated that the Federal Transit Administration has approved 

funding for the Trolley. If all goes well, the Trolley should be up and running by Fall 2015.  She also stated 
that the City was working with St. Louis County and the Crown Center on senior issues. Captain Jackson 
was starting another effort for the Citizens Police Academy. Applications will be available soon. 
   

b. Staff Report- Ms. Riganti indicated that the next step for the Board is a public hearing scheduled for 
April 9th. The Board members are welcome to be present but if not, minutes will be available. Staff will 
analyze applications and put forward a recommendation at the next meeting on April 16th.  

 
The City has a new Manager of Economic Development, Jodie Lloyd. Ms. Lloyd updated the Board on 
economic development activity in the City including construction projects, the Façade Improvement 
Program, and the Olive Blvd real estate website. Ms. Lloyd indicated that the City is partnering with 
the Chamber of Commerce on the Small Business Workshop and other projects. 
 
Mr. Winer wanted clarification on the expanded parking lot funding request. The requested amount 
would be in addition to the amount funded last year. Mr. Winer also asked about development in the I-



5 

 

 

170 and Olive Blvd area. Ms. Riganti stated that an intergovernmental agreement has been created 
for joint redevelopment efforts. That plan has been postponed by the Olivette City Council and the 
University City City Council.  
 
Mr. Peters want to consider funds previous approved but not used. Ms. Riganti stated that the funding 
had been set aside in reserves. Ms. Riganti indicated that staff will provide quarterly reports to the 
Board and at that time the Board can consider what to do with projects that have not used allocated 
funding. Ms. Syndor stated that if money is not used, there needs to be a reasonable amount of time 
to use it or put it back into the EDRST fund. Ms. Riganti stated that staff will develop policies for the 
recommendation. 
 

There being no further business, there was a motion for the Board to go into closed session to discuss a 
real estate matter, pursuant to RSMO 610.021 (2).  The motion was passed unanimously and the Board 
went into closed session. 

 
 

Respectfully submitted  
 
       

_____________________________________________________  
Jackie Wellington 

      EDRSTB Secretary  
 

Prepared by:   Jodie Lloyd,  
 Manager of Economic Development 



1 

 

 

Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board  
Public Hearing 

Meeting Minutes 
April 9, 2014 

6:30 p.m. 
 
The City of University City’s Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board held a public hearing at 
the Heman Park Community Center located at 975 Pennsylvania, University City, Missouri on April 9, 
2014. The Public Hearing was to solicit comments on the FY 2015 budget for Economic Development 
Retail Sales Tax funds. 

 
Staff Present 
Andrea Riganti, Director of Community Development 
Raymond Lai, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development 
Jodie Lloyd, Manager of Economic Development 

 
Voting Members Present  
Robert Kuhlman, Jr.  

 
Non-Voting Ex-Officio Members Present 
Joe Edwards 

 
 
1. Welcome and Introductions 
Ms. Riganti introduced the staff present, Mr. Kuhlman and Mr. Edwards.  
 
2. Economic Development Retail Sales Tax (EDRST) Overview (see presentation attached) 
Ms. Riganti gave an overview of the EDRST including the use of revenue as stated in the City’s municipal 
code and use of the funds to date, projects and programs. Ms. Riganti also review past expenditure 
amounts and explained that FY 2015 budget is projected to be about $575,000. Ms. Riganti also 
explained the next steps for the funding requests, including discussion and vote at the next EDSRT Board 
meeting followed by adoption of the budget by City Council. 
 
3. Review of FY 2015 Requests (see presentation attached) 
Ms. Lloyd reviewed the requests for funds from the 7 organizations that applied for the FY 2015 EDRST.  
 
4. Public Comments 
 
Tom Sullivan, 751 Syracuse 
Mr. Sullivan stated some of the economic development projects are questionable. Funding of the Chamber 
had little to do with economic development and collaboration would be risky. The city should be leery of 
broadband fiber projects. The most questionable request was for the expansion of parking on Loop North. 
Potential tax revenue would be lost. Buildings were already torn down to make room for the existing parking lot 
and should not have happened. U City in Bloom projects are good but should not be economic development 
projects. The City’s request for administration would not be needed, the City managed to operate without the 
subsidy before the tax was enacted. Many vacant stores along Olive should be filled. Loop Ice Carnival should 
be funded by the Loop Special Business District. The economic development board should take a close look 
at the applications to make sure they meet the needs of economic development for the City. 
 
Elsie Glickert, 6712  
Ms. Glickert stated that Melville Plaza should be called Ackert Plaza, the historical name for the plaza. She 
was in favor of beautifying Olive Blvd but supported planters, a permanent arrangement, instead of hanging 



2 

 

 

baskets. Ms. Glickert would like to see a garden at North/South and Olive Blvd. She was opposed to the 
expansion of Parking Lot #4, noting Loop North is a viable street that should be maintained. She didn’t support 
the “Welcome to the Loop” sign – not conducive to historic district. 
 
Donna Marin, 7445 Wellington 
Ms. Marin stated that her views are similar to Mr. Sullivan and Ms. Glickert. There were some good projects on 
the list but not associated with economic development. The Ice Carnival and fashion show should be funded 
through Arts and Letters Commission. She did not support the expansion of the municipal Parking Lot #4. 
Loop North provides an option for people and for access when the trolley is in place. A parking garage should 
be considered. She liked the projects on Olive Blvd. and that the Chamber has created an Olive 
subcommittee. True economic development belongs on Olive Blvd. 
 
Mae Etta Weston, 1595 Mendell 
Ms. Weston inquired about separate funding set aside for Olive Blvd. and wanted to know how the projects will 
be weighted. She enjoyed the flowers on Olive Blvd but also wanted to see projects that will generate revenue. 
She would also like to see improvements all along Olive Blvd not just on sections. Ms. Riganti responded that 
there were funds set aside for Olive Blvd. City does have plans but details cannot be disclosed at this time. In 
terms of the criteria, the Board did develop a set of guidelines. The Board is interested in activities that have 
long term economic impacts and that align with the comprehensive plan. Ms. Riganti indicated that along Olive 
Blvd, the City is concentrating funds in one segment at a time in order to make an impact. The Façade 
program, hanging plants, and street banners are targeted for the International District where 60% of the Olive 
Blvd businesses are located. Ms. Riganti also indicated that City staff have been working on a number of 
projects for Olive Blvd. and to attract development to the City. 
 
Nova Felton, 8031 Noel Ct. 
Ms. Felton wanted to know how the four Districts along Olive Blvd. were determined. She also wants to know 
about guidelines for improving the look of the buildings. Ms. Felton would like to see improvements made to 
some of the building along Olive Blvd. 
 
Ms. Riganti stated that in 2009 the City developed the Olive Blvds Design Guidelines which established 4 
districts along Olive Blvd and defined how the buildings should look. Ms. Riganti also mentioned that the 
Façade Improvement Program would improve the look of buildings and that the street banners being 
proposed would allow a consistent look and a sense of identity.  
 
The Public Hearing was adjourned at 7:14 p.m. 
 

 Prepared by:  Jodie Lloyd,  
 Manager of Economic Development 



Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board 
6801 Delmar Boulevard University City, Missouri  63130 314-505-8500 Fax:  314-862-3168 
 

 
APPLICATION FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RETAIL SALES TAX FUNDS 

FISCAL YEAR 2015 (JULY 1, 2014 – JUNE 30, 2015) 
 

 
Directions.  Please complete all sections of the application.  If a question does not apply to a project, 
please fill in with a “n/a” for not applicable.  Please refer to “Economic Development Retail Sales Tax 
Board Funding Priority Guidelines” for guidance.   
 
Application Date:      
 
Project Title: University City, Economic Development administration 
 
SECTION 1:  APPLICANT/ORGANIZATION INFORMATION 
 
1. Applicant/Organizational Information 

 
Name of Applicant/Organization: City of University City/Community Development Department 
 
Contact Person and Title: Andrea Riganti, Director of Community Development 
 
Mailing Address: 6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, MO 63130 
 
Phone Number: (314) 505-8516 
 
E-mail Address: ariganti@ucitymo.org 
 
Website: www.ucitymo.org 
 
Organizational Officers (Provide Name, Address, Phone and e-mail of at least three.  Provide Articles 
of incorporation and letter or status): 
 
a. City Council/City Manager 
 
b. 
 
c. 
 
 
Type of Entity: 
 Sole-Proprietorship 
 Corporation/Partnership/Limited Liability Company 
 Not for Profit Organization 
 Public/Government 
 
501(c) 3: 
 Yes No If no, list type of entity: 



Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) or Women Business Enterprise (WBE):   
 Yes No 
 
 

2. Applicant/Organization Background  
 

Describe the applicant/organization history and mission: 
 

A City Department 
 
Describe the applicant/organization programs and activities: 

 
The Community Development Department enforces the following codes: property maintenance, 

building, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, environmental, animal enforcement, and zoning; 
coordinates economic development activities and is responsible for performing research, preparing 
planning studies and Geographic Information Systems (GIS) maps, and advising on all matters 
affecting the physical development of the City. The Department also oversees the maintenance and 
operations of various City-owned buildings. 
 

The Department reviews and makes recommendations regarding proposed City Council action 
relating to land use, economic development, building codes, property maintenance codes, and the 
implementation of planning recommendations. 
 

The Department includes the administration and operation of all City recreation programs, Heman 
Park Community Center, Centennial Commons Recreation Facility, and the nine-hole Ruth Park Golf 
Course. 
 

The Department is organized into four divisions: (1) Administration; (2) Construction Services and 
Facilities Maintenance; (3) Recreation: Golf Course, Community Center, Aquatics, and Centennial 
Commons; and (4) Planning & Zoning, and Economic Development. The Department is also 
responsible for the Municipal-owned Parking Garage located in the Loop. 
 

The Department provides staff support for eleven (11) boards, commissions, and authorities, 
including: the City Plan Commission, the Historic Preservation Commission, the Land Clearance 
Redevelopment Authority, the Industrial Development Authority, the Tax Increment Financing 
Commission, the Board of Adjustment, the Infill Review Board, the Board of Appeals, the Economic 
Development Retail Sales Tax Board, the Parks Commission, and the Municipal Commission on Arts 
and Letters. 
 
 
If the request is from an organization, please provide proof of organizational support for the application 
(i.e. letter from organization on official letterhead, meeting minutes, etc.).   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SECTION 2:  PROGRAM OR PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
3. Program or Project Summary (attach additional sheets if necessary) 

 
Description of the Program or Project.  In addition to a detailed description of the project, include a 
summary of the need for the program or project, goals and objectives, partners, and how the program 
or project meets any City plans or policies.  Describe the number of jobs to be created by the specific 
request.   
 

The Department of Community Development is requesting $100,000 in Economic Development 
Retail Sales Tax funds to continue funding administration costs for economic development 
activities. The City has one full-time staff person, a Manager of Economic Development that 
dedicates 100% of her time to focus on business retention, expansion, and attraction efforts. The 
Director of Community Development and the Deputy Director of Planning and Economic 
Development also allocate time to focus on economic development initiatives and activities.  
 

In 2004, prior to the establishment of the Economic Development Retail Sales Tax 
(EDRST), the City convened the Advisory Board for Economic Progress. One of the highest 
priorities of the 25-member advisory board was “a dedicated economic development professional 
within City government.” The Advisory Board realized that the City’s mission of creating a robust, 
aggressive economic development program required staff support. At the time, economic 
development activities were parsed amongst a few staff members, all of whom had other primary 
duties. During the development of the EDRST legislation, City staff and elected leaders planned to 
fund administration in the sum of no more than 25% of revenue generated. In 2010, the EDRST 
voted to fund a full-time Economic Development position to implement the long term economic 
development projects and programs.    

Economic Development continues to be a top priority for University City and having a 
dedicated staff position and administration support allows economic development to remain at the 
forefront of the City’s progress. With the addition of the Manager of Economic Development 
position, the City is making great progress on economic development initiatives and will continue to 
provide the staff resources to enhance the economic vitality of University City. 
 
Define the expected outcomes of the project, milestones and how the project success will be 
measured.   

 
For the 2015 Fiscal Year, administration will focus on implementing the City’s vision and the 

economic development program. Below is a list of Economic Development activities to be 
performed with FY 2015 administration funds: 

 
• Strengthen current partnerships and explore new opportunities for regional partnerships 

that will put University City on the “map” for business expansion and attraction. 
• Develop a marketing strategy to attract new businesses: mixed-use development, 

commercial, and retail.  Build upon strategy previously developed for Olive Boulevard. 
• Prepare an economic development strategy, separate from the Comprehensive Plan 

Update, for internal use by staff, administration, and economic development related 
Boards and Commissions.   

• Review the City’s existing economic development incentives; strengthen where needed.   



• Implement a robust outreach plan which includes one-on-one visits with businesses 
along the Olive Corridor to offer assistance as needed, determine how the City can be a 
partner with businesses, etc. 

• Promote the Olive Boulevard Façade Program and assist businesses in developing 
application materials. Administer program as funds are distributed. 

• Provide technical assistance to City staff during project development for new 
construction, redevelopment, City projects, etc. to ensure economic development 
outcomes are considered and appropriately included.     

• Update the City’s Business webpage, update profile data, create resource materials, 
and promote business partners. 

• Develop a Citywide “business e-newsletter” as a communication tool to keep 
businesses informed of City related activities and events. 

• Provide staff support to the EDRST Board, the Land Clearance for Redevelopment 
Authority, and other Boards and Commissions. 

• Create an EDRST fund packet, outlining processes for applicants pre and post funding 
award 

• Identify properties for possible acquisition with EDRST funds, particularly along Olive 
Boulevard.  Work with EDRSTB and other partners on the reuse of said properties in 
conjunction with existing and planned long range planning documents. 

• Assist in the development of the Comprehensive Plan Update; advise on economic 
development elements.   

• Administer the EDRST funds including quarterly reports to the Board, invoices from 
applicants, etc.  

• Meet with potential new business owners, developers, interested parties to promote 
University City as a place for businesses and offer “one stop shop” assistance. 

• Research grant opportunities, apply for grants, administer as needed. 
• Update the City’s economic development information and marketing materials. 
• Manage the development of the Olive Commercial Corridor  website. 
• Monitor development projects, seek opportunities for additional development throughout 

the City. 
• Continue to seek development opportunities for City-owned properties on Olive Blvd.; 

market properties, including the City-owned parcels, to preferred developers.  
• Continue to research latest trends in attracting businesses and redeveloping properties 

(Gigabit Fiber, technology advancement in St. Louis, start-up businesses, transit-
oriented development, streetscape improvements, underutilized parcel redevelopment, 
etc.). 

• Be a liaison to the residential community, update community groups and organizations 
on all economic development activities and initiatives.  

• Partner with the Chamber to provide additional training opportunities to small 
businesses and potential new entrepreneurs.  

 
Through the quarterly report and staff reports to the EDRST Board, all economic 
development activities and programs will be monitored. Additional responsibilities can be 
added as needed. 

 
Program or Project Location (Attach photos of location or site, if appropriate): 
 
 Citywide 
 
Program or Project Timetable: 



 
 All year long 
 
Type of Funding Request (check all that apply): 

Project 
Program 
Other (such as marketing, legal, professional services, grants or loans to companies for job 
training) 

 
 

Total Budget: $100,000 
 
Amount of funding requested from EDRST: $100,000 
 
Is this request anticipated to be a one-time request or multi-year?  If multi-year, please provide 
additional details, including anticipated future funding request, project details, and any other helpful 
information.     
 
Multi-year. It is anticipated the City will seek $100,000 to fund economic development administration. 

 
Complete and attach form EDRST B-1 with budget cost summary. 
 
 
 
I CERTIFY THAT ALL INFORMATION IN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE 
BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF. 
 
 
 
City of University City, Department of Community Development___________________________ 
Name of Applicant Organization 
 
 
Andrea Riganti, Director____________________________________________________ 
Authorized Signature         Date 
 

3 



C
ity

 o
f U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 C
ity

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t R
et

ai
l S

al
es

 T
ax

FY
14

 R
eq

ue
st

 fo
r F

un
ds

:  
B

ud
ge

t C
os

t S
um

m
ar

y
 

 

A
pp

lic
an

t
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
A

m
ou

nt
 o

f R
eq

ue
st

$1
00

,0
00

0

P
ro

vi
de

 a
 li

st
in

g 
of

 e
ac

h 
pr

oj
ec

t o
r p

ro
gr

am
 p

ro
po

se
d 

an
d 

th
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 c

os
t a

llo
ca

tio
n.

  

 
ED

R
ST

 F
un

ds
A

pp
lic

an
t's

 C
as

h 
Fu

nd
s

A
pp

lic
an

t's
 N

on
-C

as
h 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
O

th
er

 F
un

ds
To

ta
l

I. 
 P

ro
je

ct
 o

r P
ro

gr
am

 D
ire

ct
 C

os
ts

 *
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$1

00
,0

00
.0

0 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 $
10

0,
00

0.
00

  

 II.
  I

nd
ire

ct
 C

os
ts

 **

 B
U

D
G

ET
 T

O
TA

L 
- A

LL
 A

C
TI

VI
TI

ES
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
10

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  $

10
0,

00
0.

00

*E
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f d
ire

ct
 c

os
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
at

er
ia

ls
, s

al
ar

ie
s,

 fr
in

ge
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

its
, s

up
pl

ie
s,

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t t

ha
t a

re
 ti

ed
 to

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 c
os

t o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
su

ch
 a

s 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t o

r 
pr

og
ra

m
.  

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 C
ity

 s
ta

ff 
is

 a
dv

is
ed

 to
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

de
fin

in
g 

di
re

ct
 c

os
ts

.  
   

**
E

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f i

nd
ire

ct
 c

os
ts

 a
re

 e
xp

en
se

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
, s

uc
h 

as
 g

en
er

al
 o

ffi
ce

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

Th
es

e 
co

st
s 

m
us

t r
ep

re
se

nt
 a

 re
as

on
ab

le
 a

nd
 

pr
op

or
tio

na
l r

at
e 

in
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
to

 d
ire

ct
 c

os
ts

.  
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 C

ity
 s

ta
ff 

is
 a

dv
is

ed
 to

 a
ss

is
t w

ith
 d

ef
in

in
g 

in
di

re
ct

 c
os

ts
.  













 

EDRSTB Funding for the Chamber of Commerce January 2014-June 2014 

             
  

Website 
 

Taste U City Olive Committee SB workshop Training 
  

             January 
 

0 
 

0 
 

500 
 

500 
 

0 
 

1000 

             February 
 

500 
 

500 
 

2000 
 

1000 
 

0 
 

4000 

             March 
 

500 
 

4000 
 

2000 
 

1000 
 

250 
 

7750 

             April 
 

500 
 

6000 
 

2000 
 

1000 
 

250 
 

9750 

             May 
 

1600 
 

2000 
 

2000 
 

0 
 

250 
 

5850 

             June 
 

2000 
 

0 
 

2000 
 

1000 
 

250 
 

5250 

             
             
            

33600 
 

This is the breakdown of funds allocated buy the RSTB for each of 5 projects that the Chamber of Commerce is working on to help spur economic 
development in University City, and also build a viable Chamber for the community. About 50% of each workweek is allocated to these projects. 

Website: Funds go towards time allocated to the creation and promotion of the website. Many hours will be spent collecting data for the 
website, especially spring and into summer and fall. 

Taste of U. City; a growing community event for the city, much of the funds are used for organization, promotion, mailings, paperwork, rentals 
and advertising.  

Olive Committee: Outreach to all the business owners and property owners, research for viable developments, projects, beautification, host 
meetings, make recommendations, organize special advertising and promotional materials. 

Small Business Workshops:  February 25th and April 24th. The 2nd and 3rd workshop in a series.  Looking at scheduling more for July, September 
and November. Funds for promotion and marketing, sign up and attendance, recruiting speakers and presenters, gathering materials to hand 
out, purchasing refreshments, set up, clean up, follow up. 

 



From: Sinan Alpaslan
To: Jodie Lloyd
Cc: Raymond Lai; Andrea Riganti
Subject: RE: EDRST Board follow-up
Date: Thursday, April 03, 2014 5:28:28 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Olive Blvd projects.docx

Jodie – please see below breakdown and attached map for the sidewalk-shoulder paving work that was previously
done on Olive.  Among the prior work, only the Phase III project was a long segment and I indicated the beginning and
end points of this segment on the attached map.  The rest of the projects were for various lengths around the
indicated major intersections but generally short segments that did not even reach the first local road intersection
adjacent to the major intersection as indicated.
 
As you will notice, the attached map shows everything up to Grant Dr. on the west.  Beyond Grant Dr. to further west
on Olive, we have not had any sidewalk or shoulder work done other than some asphalt imprinted shoulders and
concrete curb ramps at Woodson, which are shown on an inset within the main map.
 
From Woodson intersection to the west up to near the I170 interchange a Great Rivers Greenway (GRG) trail
improvements project built a concrete sidewalk for the entire width from the back of the curb to the right-of-way line
that includes the sidewalk and the “shoulder”.  And the rest of the sidewalks from the line where GRG stopped to the
western City limits were built during MoDOT Olive-I170 Interchange Reconstruction project.  The details of those
others’ projects (funding sources, etc.) are not readily available, but no City funds were spent on them and we just
liaised with the parties that were responsible for those projects.
 
For clarification of the legend on the attached map:  Asphalt work means imprinted asphalt shoulders.  Concrete work
means concrete sidewalks.
 

Project Olive Phase I Olive Phase II Olive Phase III

Application Estimate $1.4 Million
City 21% = $300.000
Federal grant for remaining

$1.3 Million
City 21% = $273.000
Federal grant for remaining

$1.5 Million
City 21% = $345.000
Federal grant for
remaining

Decorative Wall Completed section of the
Entry wall @ Skinker

Completed Remaining
Wall/Iron fencing

No

Sidewalks/
Concrete work

Sidewalk installed in 7
locations where no sidewalk
existed

Sidewalk installed near
Kingsland where no sidewalk
existed; turf in median @
Kingsland replaced; Modular
wall installed at Sutter

Repair sidewalk /shoulder
between Eastover and
Pennsylvania

Trees 157 new trees 8 new trees
148 Tree grates (paved areas
only)

No new trees

Street lighting 37 new lights 50 new lights
Installed photocell in all lights

Retrofit from 100W to
70W bulbs

Bus Shelters 6 new bus shelters 1 new bus shelter Replace glass in 4 bus
shelters

Imprinted Asphalt Around 9 intersections Imprinted shoulder  4
intersections

Repair deteriorated
asphalt shoulder with
concrete and install ADA
ramps

mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SALPASLAN
mailto:jlloyd@ucitymo.org
mailto:rlai@ucitymo.org
mailto:ariganti@ucitymo.org


[bookmark: _GoBack][image: ][image: ]LEGEND

:  Phase III - concrete

Phase III End

Phase III Start

:  Phase II - asphalt

:  Phase II - concrete

:  Phase I - concrete

:  Phase I - asphalt



image1.png



image2.png





Bike route 10.6 miles of class 3 bike
routes

6.25 miles of class 3 bike
routes

None

Construction
timeframes

2003-2005 2005-2009 2011-2012

 
 
Sinan
 

From: Jodie Lloyd 
Sent: Monday, March 31, 2014 10:13 AM
To: Sinan Alpaslan
Cc: Raymond Lai; Andrea Riganti
Subject: EDRST Board follow-up
 
Hi Sinan,
At the EDRST Board meeting last Thursday, the Board asked for additional information from Public Works. The  Board
would like the following information:

·         A map of Olive Blvd indicating street improvements
·         Each segment, include total cost, project year, and funding source (federal, local, etc.)

 
We would like this information by Thursday, if possible. Please let me know if you have any questions.
 
Thanks,
 

 
Jodie Vice Lloyd
Manager of Economic Development
Department of Community Development
City of University City, 6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, MO 63130
P: 314.505.8522 | F: 314.862.3168 | www.ucitymo.org   
 

http://www.ucitymo.org/


 

LEGEND 

:  Phase I - 
asphalt 

:  Phase I - 
concrete 

:  Phase II - 
concrete 

:  Phase II - 
asphalt 

Phase III Start 

Phase III End 

:  Phase III - 
concrete 



 

University City EDRST Response 

         Your proposal indicates that $44,280 of the design and engineering budget is for the City of 
University City and $35,720, the match, is for the City of St. Louis portion. Can you explain how the 
University City portion is more expensive considering it is a fraction of the length?  Are you requesting 
any funding from St. Louis City? 

The Loop Media Hub will offer connections both by fiber to the premise and through wireless service to 
subscribers along Delmar and Debaliviere. Market investigation has shown that the majority of customers 
will be wireless. Because the main street population density is higher on the University City side and will 
require more connectivity, the cost of engineering will be higher. We will also be requesting funding from 
St. Louis City. 

         The proposal identified $35,720 in Stakeholder funds. Do you have that funding currently? If so, 
please provide evidence or a letter of commitment.  

Current stakeholder seed fund contributions and commitments of $25K and another $ 50K verbal 
commitment to be finalized in April. In response to expressions of interest from local organizations, we 
have submitted in response $700K in proposals for support. Building owners along the ROW have 
expressed verbally that they will commit $280K towards lateral construction pending review of the 
Building Services agreement. We have other stakeholders in the process of coming on board that will 
also be making contributions. Stakeholders and local institutions are excited and confident that our 
Gigabit Store and “ Who’s that kid” campaigns will have positive fund raising results. We have a verbal 
commitment for the location of the Gigabit Store. 

         In your presentation to the EDRST Board, you indicated that engineering will be completed in May. 
Funding from this grant would not become available until July 1, 2014. Do you anticipate a reimbursement 
for the engineering?  If so, please keep in mind that EDRST funds cannot be used for in-progress 
projects. Funds also cannot be used for projects that have already occurred. 

Our funds request of $ 44,280 meets EDRST timelines and is for the next engineering phase. Our 
engineering is in two distinct phases and we have just completed the first or building inspection phase 
and will not start the design/construction package phase until the License agreement with the TDD is 
complete. The engineering firm that we use also does engineering work for Google Fiber in Kansas City 
and Austin. 

         Can you please explain the general process for the gigabit fiber: who will own the fiber, how does it 
get distributed, who operates the fiber, what happens when issues arise with access, who makes repairs, 
etc. 

The Gigabit fiber will be owned by The Loop Media Hub, a Missouri not for profit corporation.  Loop Media 
Hub will contract with an Internet Service Provider (ISP) to maintain and operate the system. We are 
currently negotiating with three ISP’s.  Pursuant to the license agreement between Loop Trolley TDD and 
Loop Media Hub that is negotiation, we anticipate the TDD will be responsible for physical repairs to its 



ROW. The Service Provider will be responsible for access to, operation of and repairs to fiber and 
laterals. The Loop Media Hub will also maintain a contingency fund. 

         How sure is the Loop Media Hub that fiber will be installed, you mentioned agreements with ISP 
providers. How will you fund the purchase of the fiber? Can you provide the City with any concrete 
evidence of a successful project. The City must ensure that EDRST funds – taxpayer funds -- are being 
used towards a viable project and a viable organization. 

The funding of the fiber will be raised by the not for profit and all critical agreements will be in place 
including the License Agreement with the TDD, Building Services Agreement and ISP Agreement. The 
Loop Media Hub’s attorney Michael Orlowski is experienced in this area and is currently working with the 
TDD on the License agreement and has developed a draft Building Services Agreement., He is also 
participating in all ISP negotiations. He has also developed agreements for Google Fiber in Missouri. 

Furthermore, to be able to develop a successful project of this type takes a previous high speed fiber 
business development, contractual and engineering experience, knowledge of data center services, 
Gigabit related economic development planning and education and entrepreneurial programs to prepare 
community leaders. 

Previous High Speed Fiber Experience 

The largest project worked on from conception to completion was the Nashville Electric Service NES. In 
this project David Sandel’s team developed many of community engagement, contractual and business 
model and pricing methodologies which are now being used in other Gigabit Cities. Because of David 
Sandel’s work with NES, NES now has a revenue positive high speed fiber service that covers an area 
almost the size of St. Louis. In addition, the effective process and procedures and contracts that were 
developed for NES makes it likely that Nashville will become selected as one of the next Google Fiber 
Cities. 

Data Center Services 

From 1997-2001 David Sandel was a senior system engineer with Cisco Systems in Tulsa Oklahoma. 
During his tenure with Cisco he received two awards for “Engineering Excellence”. Later in 2003, David 
Sandel was the co-founder of Datotel, a 30k square managed services data center service. Built to be 
used during the Internet bubble, never used and then scheduled to be scrapped in 2002, today Datotel is 
a thriving business in downtown St. Louis. 

Gigabit Economic Development Planning 

David Sandel is a nationally recognized leader in how to accelerate the economic development of Gigabit 
communities. He has been recognized but the Broadband Properties organization in this regard. 

Education Programs for Community Leaders 

David Sandel is a nationally and internationally recognized leader in how to lead, manage, fund and 
accelerate the development of Gigabit or Smart Cities. David is the co-founder of The Gigabit City 
Leadership Institute in partnership with Kansas City leadership and other key global cities. 

         Will there be a for-profit entity to be formed?  If so, please clarify its working relationship with the non-
profit entity proposed.  

The purpose of the not for profit is to attract tax-deductible contributions to accelerate the creative, 
educational and economic development potential along the route of The Trolley. As new companies are 

http://www.nesnetwork.com/
http://www.datotel.com/
http://issuu.com/broadbandproperties/docs/davidsandel_issuu_jan14?e=2311919/6412910
http://gigabitcityleadershipinstitute.com/


attracted to the area and formed, this will result in new independent for profit companies being formed. 
This impact was outlined in the Gigabit Economic Development Impact statement and The Loop as a 
Community Accelerator document developed during the feasibility study. 

         Will there be any regulatory oversight on the fiber network, after installation, by any state or federal 
agency? 

Whoever the ISP is will be a video service provider that is regulated by Missouri Public Service 
Commission and the Missouri video service provider act. The ISP is also subject to applicable local rules 
and regulations re business operators and ROW users.

         Please clarify the extension issue discussed at the meeting last week.  Cost of extension of the fiber 
network and any limitations on the distance of extension from the main trunk line?  Is it feasible to extend 
the fiber to Olive Boulevard?  

By retaining legal and engineering contractors who have worked with Google Fiber in Kansas City, The 
Loop Media Hub has put together an organizational, contractual and engineering framework to minimize 
construction costs and maximize economic, educational and social impacts. As a result, it is possible to 
extend the organizational, contractual and low cost engineering framework in any direction which could 
include Olive Street Road. Without this framework in place, costs along Olive St Road would be 
higher and have a lower economic development impact.  

To develop a solid foundation to anchor and extension along Olive St Road we have also developed a 
productive relationship with the Chinese American Community over the last three years and have been 
included in five front page articles in the Chinese American Newspaper. 

There are no real limitations on extending the fiber provided the proper engineering and electronics are 
used. We do not have the cost of the extension to Olive at this time as we are currently working to finalize 
plans with the TDD. Again, without The Loop Media Hub framework in place, costs along Olive St Road 
would be higher and have a lower economic development impact.  

 

 

 

 



 
524 Trinity Avenue  T. (314) 725-6555       www.cocastl.org 
St. Louis, MO 63130  F. (314) 725-6222 
 

 
 

 
 
 
April 8, 2014 
 
 
 
To whom it may concern: 
 
I am writing this letter on behalf of COCA – Center of Creative Arts to express enthusiastic support for 
the establishment of the Loop Media Hub.  COCA firmly believes that the arts are a significant driver 
of individual and community success, and to that end, we strive to continually increase our relevance 
and impact in the St. Louis community.  The Loop Media Hub represents the innovative and 
progressive thinking that aligns with our organization and the impact we seek to have in the 
community.  Through a strategic partnership, we hope to develop additional opportunities for 
meaningful arts learning in a digital age by merging technology and new media into more traditional 
forms of arts programming, especially for low-income youth, schools and educators. 
 
To demonstrate our support, COCA is providing $10,000 in funds in April 2014 to help launch and 
develop the Loop Media Hub.  Additionally, our staff and board are committed to assisting the effort 
with COCA’s human resources and organizational capabilities, as needed and as available. 
 
We believe the Loop Media Hub will be a showcase for our region and beyond, and we are proud to 
support the effort.   
 
 
Thank you, 

 
Kelly Pollock 
Executive Director 
COCA 
 



 

Matt Beaver  President 
Edward Jones 
Ken Rice  Vice President 
American Family  
Scott Hoselton  Vice President 
Walgreens  
Pam Anderson  Secretary 
Prudential Select Properties  
Karen McCollum  Treasurer 
CPA, Wagewise 
 
Directors 
Cheryl Adelstein  
Washington University 
Irina Bursak  
AW Healthcare 
Jeff Glogower  
Attorney 
Antionette Green  
Fifth/Third Bank 
Bill Krenn  
Winco 
Denise Niemann  
Brentmoor 
Tim O'Donnell  
PCW 
Mike Stevenson  
Royal Bank 
Max Tsai  
Baily International 
Jeff Weintrop  
The Silver Lady 
Quentin Williams  
Cintas 
Megan Zimmerman  
Crown Center  
 
 

7700 Olive Blvd., University City, MO 63130            314-337-2489          www.universitycitychamber.com 

April 16th, 2014 
 
Re: EDRSTB 
 
 
The University City Chamber of Commerce listened to a 
presentation by Eric Friedman and the TOD Broadband Fiber 
Collaborative today at our monthly board meeting. The Chamber 
has passed a motion to support Mr. Friedman and the Collaborative 
in their efforts to help bring Broadband Fiber to the Olive corridor 
and perform their feasibility study.  
 
The Chamber wanted to also recognize that they are still in support 
of the Loop Media Hub, and the fiber project along Delmar, but 
they recognize that time is of the essence. To help attract new 
business and development to the City of U. City, it is imperative to 
act quickly. 
 
Board Members present: 
Matt Beaver 
Ken Rice 
Scott Hoselton 
Pan Anderson 
Irina Bursak 
Denise Niemann 
Mike Stevenson 
Jeff Weintrop 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Anne Carr 
Director  
 















Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board
Fiscal Year 2015 - Funding Requests and Recommendations

Commentary:  All applications were reviewed for eligibility as per Section 2.41.050 of the Municipal Code and evaluated by ability to meet the funding priority guidelines established by the Economic Development Retail Sales Board on May 7, 2013.    
The proposed budget is based on anticipated revenues of $575,000.  

Applicant Project Summary
Requested 
Funding Location

Staff 
Recommendation Staff Analysis

University City Chamber of Commerce Revitalize the University City Chamber through long term economic development, 
marketing, and training programs

$52,927 Citywide $49,427 Meets most funding priority guidelines. A small decrease in funding is recommended to one Chamber project and associated incidental costs.  This project is the Olive 
Blvd website maintenance project; a portion of the task proposed by the Chamber will be accomplished by the website firm (to be selected) for efficiency and at less 
cost.  A proportional reduction in indirect costs was made to reflect reduction in website project.  In addition, staff recommends a re-evaluation of proposed training 
program to focus on additional small business workshops and other unmet needs instead of Lynda.com training.

Loop Media Hub Design and engineering of Gigabit wireless and supporting fiber optic network $44,280 Delmar Loop $44,280 Meets funding priority guidelines

Loop Special Business District Loop Ice Carnival $30,000 Delmar Loop $10,000 Meets some funding priority guidelines. Partial funding is recommended.  This event meets tourism priority, is an established, successful event, and draws over 
10,000 people to University City. 

Loop Special Business District 50,000 full color Loop brochures, distributed throughout the year $12,000 Delmar Loop $12,000 Meets funding priority guidelines
Loop Special Business District Delmar Loop enhanced presence on the St. Louis Visitors Commission website, 

www.explorestlouis.com
$4,000 Delmar Loop $4,000 Meets funding priority guidelines

Loop Special Business District Delmar Loop ad placed in the official St. Louis Visitors Guide (385,000 copies printed) $10,500 Delmar Loop $10,500 Meets funding priority guidelines

Loop Special Business District Provide search engine optimization for www.visittheloop.com $24,000 Delmar Loop $20,000 Staff recommends LSBD update/upgrade website as one project rather than piecemeal approach. Redesign including SEO and compatibility will provide better 
product at reduced cost = $20,000. 

U City in Bloom Maintain existing 90 containerized gardens and 80 newly planted trees in the Loop $7,744 Delmar Loop $7,744 Meets funding priority guidelines

U City in Bloom Plant and care for nine existing gardens on Olive Blvd between Skinker and Midland $13,041 Olive Boulevard $13,041 Meets funding priority guidelines

U City in Bloom Install, plant, and maintain 76 hanging baskets on Olive Blvd between Midland and 
Grant

$21,945 Olive Boulevard $21,945 Meets funding priority guidelines

U City in Bloom Maintain and care for 70 newly trees planted along Olive Blvd $9,380 Olive Boulevard $9,380 Meets funding priority guidelines
U City in Bloom Install and maintain ground cover around 70 newly planted trees on Olive Blvd $11,624 Olive Boulevard $11,624 Meets funding priority guidelines
The Collaborative Feasibility study for the installation of broadband fiber on Olive Boulevard; Highest and 

best use study
$85,000 Olive Boulevard $45,000 Meets some funding priority guidelines. Staff recommends partial funding of $45,000 and revision of scope of work.  Due to unknown variables regarding the potential 

to act as a development catalyst, potential to redevelop vacant properties, or to be value added, staff is recommending scope be revised to a fiber feasibility study 
rather than a business plan (which is premature).  Also, staff recommends a delay of the highest and best use study ($20,000) as that effort will be accomplished 
during the City's comprehensive plan update process.  The feasibility study should consider how gigabit fiber will be a catalyst for redevelopment on Olive Boulevard; 
how the City solicits regional/local commitment from businesses/technology sector; provide an economic benefit analysis; provide an analysis of what businesses the 
City could expect to be located on Olive Blvd due to installation of fiber; describe what other public infrastructure/amenities will need to be provided to support fiber; 
and explore the possibility of a fiber incubator for the corridor.  This scope is similar to previous study for the Loop Media Hub project, for which EDRST provided 
$15,000 to match contributions from other stakeholders.  

City of University City, Department of 
Community Development

Economic Development administration - staff and REA efforts $100,000 Citywide $100,000 Meets funding priority guidelines

City of University City, Department of 
Community Development

Marketing materials/To-Be-Planned events on Olive Blvd. $10,000 Citywide/Olive 
Blvd

$10,000 Meets funding priority guidelines

City of University City, Department of 
Community Development

Street banners in the International District on Olive Blvd $20,000 Olive Boulevard $20,000 Meets funding priority guidelines

Olive Boulevard To be determined projects on Olive Blvd. $0 Olive Boulevard $186,059 Additional projects benefitting Olive Boulevard will be initiated throughout the fiscal year, in consultation with the EDRSTB, Olive Boulevard Group (Chamber of 
Commerce Subcommittee), residents and other stakeholders.  Projects could include expanding the Façade Improvement Program, property acquisition/landbanking, 
Olive Boulevard marketing and more.   

$575,000  

Applicant Project Summary
Requested 
Funding Location

Staff 
Recommendation Staff Analysis

Loop Special Business District Replace and update St. Louis Walk of Fame stars and plaques in the sidewalk $6,000 Delmar Loop $0 Does not meet funding priority guidelines
Loop Special Business District Addition of security cameras in Parking Lot #3 located behind Fitz's $25,000 Delmar Loop $0 For consideration in public works budget
Loop Special Business District Funding for "Style in the Loop"  - a fashion show event on Delmar Blvd in September 

2014
$5,000 Delmar Loop $0 Does not meet funding priority guidelines

Loop Special Business District Tree well grates in the Loop $20,000 Delmar Loop $0 For consideration in public works budget
City of University City, Department of Public 
Works and Parks

Installation of 2 additional pedestrian-scale lights and new LED lights at the Melville 
Plaza

$20,000 Delmar Loop $0 For consideration in public works budget

City of University City, Department of Public 
Works and Parks

Installation of ADA-compliant sidewalks on Olive Blvd between Coolidge and Grant $87,000 Olive Boulevard $0 Does not meet funding priority guidelines

City of University City, Department of Public 
Works and Parks

Installation of ADA-compliant sidewalks on Olive Blvd between Woodson to Coolidge $82,000 Olive Boulevard $0 Does not meet funding priority guidelines

U City in Bloom Install, plant, and maintain 78 hanging baskets on Olive Blvd between Skinker and 
Midland

$38,493 Olive Boulevard $0 Staff recommends re-evaluation next year to determine U City in Bloom's capacity and to evaluate the success of the 76 hanging baskets between Midland and Grant.

Loop Special Business District "Welcome to the Loop" illuminated sign across Delmar Blvd, east of Kingsland $90,000 Delmar Loop $0 Does not meet funding priority guidelines.
Loop Special Business District Expansion of parking lot #4, north of Cicero's and Starbucks $250,000 Delmar Loop $0 Does not meet funding priority guidelines.  A detailed parking demand analysis conducted by a professional is warranted.  This analysis should be performed in 

conjunction with the Comprehensive Plan Update process, which will begin very soon and consider overall parking strategies for the entire Loop area.  
Loop Special Business District Update www.visittheloop.com website - compatibility with smart phones, tablets, etc. $16,000 Delmar Loop $0 Combined with project recommended for funding above.

Not recommended for funding $639,493

Recommended for funding

RECOMMENDED FOR FUNDING

NOT RECOMMENDED FOR FUNDING


	EDRST Cover Memo4-18-14.pdf
	EDRSTB - April 23 Board Packet (2).pdf
	EDRST Cover Memo
	4_23_14 agenda
	EDRSTB-3-27-14-Minutes - Draft
	EDRST-PH-4-9-14-Minutes
	EDRST FY 2015 Applications_Staff Analysis
	Sheet1

	CD - Adminstration
	LSBD - Tree Grates
	EDRSTB Funding for the Chamber of Commerce January 2014
	Public Works material
	PW - Olive Blvd projects
	Loop Media Hub - U City EDRST Response - April 7 2014 - Issue 4 0
	Loop Media Hub Letter of Support - COCA - April 9 2014 - Issue 1 0
	Chamber Letter of Support The Collaborative
	Email from Mr. Stone in support of parking lot expansion




